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the roots go deeP.
More than three-quarters of a century ago, rural Iowans formed electric 
cooperatives to improve their quality of life. Electricity meant lights in the 
evening, ease in storing and preparing food, help with the rigors of farm 
chores, a pump for the family’s water supply and a radio in the living room.

Decades later, Corn Belt Power Cooperative and its member co-ops are 
firmly planted in our communities. True to our origin, we are fundamentally 
connected to the neighbors we serve.

Our board members and employees serve as community leaders and 
volunteers.

Our economic development programs pump millions of dollars into  
revolving loans and grants to grow and expand community businesses.

Corn Belt Power contributes millions of dollars in property taxes that support 
schools, develop parks, fund hospitals and provide necessary public services.

Our co-ops support local causes and charities with monetary donations and 
the elbow grease needed to get things done. 

As established employers, electric co-ops provide some of the best, most 
secure jobs in rural Iowa.

And, most fundamentally, Corn Belt Power and its members are rooted in 
our heritage of providing reliable, affordable electricity to power the rural 
economy and way of life.

Indeed, the roots go deep.
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14. ray lathroP, Power Co-op employees Credit Union Board of directors | 15. dave heyden, Beeds lake restoration 
run  | 16. dennis Berry, american legion Bingo | 17. andy stalzer, st. Mary’s shining star Preschool  | 18. Kathy 
taylor, sonshine singers | 19. Karen Berte, Meals from the heartland | 20. sUe riChardson, humboldt Congregational 
United Church of Christ | 21. tyler Baxter, humboldt Fourth of July Parade | 22. Faith warden, Kiwanis dictionaries 
23. MiKe Finnegan, Beeds lake restoration run | 24. Jill Pliner, humboldt hospice | 25. Kathy saathoFF, arthritis 
Foundation walk  | 26. JiM verMeer, humboldt Community schools Business Partners | 27. eileen Bergert, ron lanning, 
sarah dornath, Joe hanrahan, american Cancer society relay for life | 28. Matt newton, humboldt volunteer 
Fire department | 29. MiKe thatCher, United Methodist Church, west Bend | 30. JiM sayers, Marena Fritzler, ron 
lanning, humboldt-dakota City Chamber Chili Cookoff

1. dan watneM, humboldt Community Chorus | 2. JiM sayers, dan watneM, ron lanning, habitat for humanity  
3. Corie eriCKson, iowa Farm Bureau | 4. JiM sayers, humboldt Fourth of July Parade | 5. steve dePaUw, american 
legion Flag detail and 21-gun salute | 6. Brittany diCKey, Kiwanis easter egg hunt | 7. steve CUrry, humboldt 
Community Chorus | 8. PatriCK Connor, t-Ball Coach | 9. steve Bohan, humboldt Public library | 10. Kevin 
BornhoFt, Blood Center of iowa | 11. JenniFer arndorFer, dallas Clark Foundation golf tournament | 12. dean 
Jensen, emmetsburg high school Band Boosters | 13. Marena Fritzler, humboldt area arts Community  

CORN BELT POwER COOPERATiVE EmPLOyEES ”ROOTEd iN ThEiR COmmUNiTiES”
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2012 brought new power supply to 
our generating portfolio through our 
membership in Basin Electric Power 
Cooperative. The addition of the $405- 
million Deer Creek Station — a 300-net 
megawatt capacity plant that is Basin 
Electric’s first combined cycle unit — helps 
guarantee a reliable supply of energy in our 
system. 

Corn Belt Power’s decision to join Basin 
Electric three years ago focused on reducing 
risk associated with a major plant going 
down unexpectedly in the Corn Belt Power 
system. Having access to a growing power 
supply keeps Corn Belt Power from being 
subject to marketplace fluctuations. 

However, building new generation has 

its costs. Along with other rate pressures, 
Basin Electric’s addition of a new coal plant 
in 2011 resulted in an October 2011 rate 
increase from Basin Electric to Corn Belt 
Power that was passed on to Corn Belt 
Power’s members in January 2012. An 
approximately 7 percent increase from Basin 
Electric announced in 2012 will begin in 
January 2013 and will result in a roughly  
6 percent increase in Corn Belt Power’s  
Rate A charged to members.

In 2012, we began studying options for the 
future of Corn Belt Power’s Wisdom Unit 1. 
With implementation of the Environmental 
Protection Agency’s Utility Mercury and Air 
Toxics Standards, we will likely be unable to 
continue to burn coal as a primary fuel at 
Wisdom Unit 1. We are studying all options, 
including converting the unit to natural 
gas, making it into a combined cycle plant 

Throughout 2012, we witnessed Corn Belt Power 

Cooperative’s commitment to providing reliable, 

affordable electricity to our member cooperatives. 

“Rooted in Our Communities,” we continued to work 

to enhance the quality of life for everyone we serve. 

with Wisdom Unit 2 or putting in a new gas 
turbine. We will partner with Basin Electric 
to make this decision.

We believe growth is good. It helps spread 
out fixed costs, which are always going up 
whether it be the cost of buying poles, wires 
or trucks. We must continue to grow our 
load or we will be moving backward.

2012 was the first year that we activated 
our load control program, shutting off 
water heaters as we approached a setpoint 
and, therefore, shaving our peak load and 
demand costs. Our Watts Smart® load 
management program lowers costs to our 
participating member cooperatives. This 
provides one way we can help offset some 
of the increases from rising rates.

Throughout the year, Corn Belt Power 
reconductored sections of transmission line 

that age or previous storms had weakened. 
We must continue to upgrade our lines 
— shortening spans between poles and 
increasing conductor capacity — because 
members expect higher reliability today 
than ever before. 

The mild weather was especially conducive 
to the reconductoring work, allowing crews 
to surpass the goal of completing 30 miles 
of transmission line. Corn Belt Power’s 
electrical maintenance crews reached a 
milestone in 2012, completing all of the 
work to make Corn Belt Power’s substation 
equipment free of polychlorinated biphenyl 
contaminated oil.

In 2012, leaders from Corn Belt Power and 
cooperatives throughout the Basin Electric 
system continued to analyze the option of 
joining a regional transmission organization, 

whether that be the Midwest Independent 
System Operator or the Southwest Power 
Pool. Basin Electric, its members and the 
Western Area Power Administration will 
need to work together, along with Heartland 
Consumers Power District, to make this 
decision and possible future transition. 
It is Corn Belt Power’s goal to have as 
reliable a system as possible without adding 
exorbitant costs. We will need to balance 
the risk of potential loss of independence 
with opportunities from additional access 
to markets.

We know that throughout the history of 
Corn Belt Power, we have benefitted from 
being at the legislative table when decisions 
are made. If we are not in contact with our 
legislators, they may make decisions not 
in the best interests of our members. We 
continued to lobby actively on behalf of 

Corn Belt Power       Executive Report
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Kenneth h. Kuyper, executive vice President and general Manager  
donald Feldman, President, Corn Belt Power Board of directors
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our members throughout 2012, stating our 
case for a stray voltage standard in Iowa and 
voicing our concerns about increasing EPA 
regulations in Washington, D.C. Our staff 
at Corn Belt Power does a great job dealing 
with all of the increasing regulation of our 
operations.

Throughout the year, Corn Belt Power 
actively promoted its energy efficiency 
programs, offering members tools and 
information to help them use electricity 
wisely. We foresee our efforts and programs 
continuing well into the future.

We continued our emphasis on economic 
development throughout 2012. Results of 

these programs not only help spread costs 
over more kilowatt-hour sales, but they also 
retain jobs, keep schools full and maintain 
the viability of our communities. 

Corn Belt Power completed the process 
of becoming financially rated in 2012. We 
were pleased to receive two A- ratings for 
our first venture through this process. Being 
rated allows us to borrow from additional 
lenders and increases our access not just 
to additional funds, but also to competitive 
rate options. We also started the process, 
along with 10 other G&Ts, of obtaining an 
indenture that will allow us to borrow long 
term from lenders other than the Rural 
Utilities Service, if needed.

We were also pleased to receive approval 
from the Rural Utilities Service for a $55.8 
million loan in 2012. These funds will be 
used for several projects, including the 
installation of a scrubber and baghouse at 
Neal 4, Sioux City.

As we look back on 2012, one of Corn 
Belt Power’s strengths that is frequently 
apparent is the positive working relationship 
of our cohesive board of directors. 
Cooperation among our directors allows 
us to focus on the work at hand to keep 
Corn Belt Power the effective, efficient and 
productive cooperative it needs to be to 
serve its members. 

member REC Rates
average reC member system cost, including substation charge;

calculated average reC rate reflects power sold to municipals and others served by reCs.

70 mills per kwh
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review““wE BELiEVE GROwTh iS GOOd. iT hELPS SPREAd OUT fixEd COSTS, whiCh ARE ALwAyS 
GOiNG UP whEThER iT BE ThE COST Of BUyiNG POLES, wiRES OR TRUCkS. wE mUST 

CONTiNUE TO GROw OUR LOAd OR wE wiLL BE mOViNG BACkwARd.

throughout 2012, Corn Belt Power Cooperative and its member systems furthered their 
mission to enhance the quality of life for the people they serve by:

• adding power supplies

• improving transmission lines and substation facilities 

• increasing access to financing options

• teaching members how to use electricity wisely 

• assisting new and expanding businesses

these new and continued efforts show how deeply Corn Belt Power and its members are 
“rooted in our Communities.”DonalD FelDman

President, Board of Directors
Kenneth h. Kuyper

Executive Vice President and General Manager
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 Calhoun County reC
drUg aBUse resistanCe edUCation
Calhoun County REC annually donates funds to  
support the D.A.R.E. program at Prairie Valley  
Community Schools. Fifth graders receive the D.A.R.E. 
lions as graduation gifts after completing lessons  
on drug education, peer pressure and wise  
decision-making skills.

terry Finley
Corn Belt Power Director,  

representing Calhoun County REC

20092008 20122011

SySTEm PEAk
Corn Belt Power system peak = (reCs + wC) x 1.06 at time of Corn Belt Power 60/30-minute system peak
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Sales and Peak 
demand

AffECTED By unusuAl 
weather conditions, a continued weak 
economy and the third year in a row of little 
or no crop drying load, Corn Belt Power’s 
2012 sales total of 1,851 million kilowatt-
hours was almost identical to the previous 
year’s sales total. 

Sales to the RECs increased approximately 
half a percent and sales to NIMECA were up 
a little more than three and a half percent, 
while sales to the City of Webster City 
decreased almost 10 percent, due in part to 
reduced commercial and industrial load.

Temperatures during early winter months 
were unusually warm. The trend continued 
with a hot and dry summer, which hastened 
plant development and reduced crop yields. 
Although the fall months experienced 
more normal temperatures, dry conditions 
resulted in little crop drying load.

Throughout 2012, the economy in general 
continued to languish. Although sales to 
some commercial and industrial loads 
showed an increase from the year before, 
reductions in other commercial loads 
partially offset those increases.

Corn Belt Power’s peak of 321 megawatts 
occurred at 3:30 p.m. on July 25 and was 
only slightly higher than the peak set the 
previous year. System load reached its 
peak demand after several days of high 
temperatures and high heat indices.

Watts Smart® load control was active at 
the time of the system peak and reduced 
demand an estimated 3,800 kilowatts. 
Direct water heater control and voluntary 
load reduction by a large commercial 
business contributed to the demand 
savings.

43% residential & other 
22% ethanol/diesel  
14% manufacturing 
8% municipals 
7% swine
6% poultry

2012 
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ExCEllEnT REliABiliTy Of 
service to member co-ops remained a top 
objective in 2012. During the year, Corn 
Belt Power was online to members 99.994 
percent of the time. 

Corn Belt Power crews worked on several 
transmission line reconductoring projects 
throughout 2012. Stronger lines help 
maintain reliability of service to members. 

Reconductoring projects included a 10-
mile section of line from Glidden to the 
Carrollton Substation in Carroll County. Due 
to age, load growth and previous ice storm 
damage, the 69 kV line needed to be rebuilt 
to maintain reliability of service to members 
of Raccoon Valley Electric Cooperative.

Crews installed larger conductor on a 10-
mile section of line from Laurens Substation 
to Dover Switching Station in Pocahontas 
County. The project included installation of 
new poles with shortened spans between 
them and relocation of two miles of line.

Linemen reconductored a 14-mile section 
of line from the Sheffield Switching Station 
to the Hampton Switching Station in early 
summer. Corn Belt Power selected this 
section of line for reconductoring due to its 
age, condition and capacity limitations.

Corn Belt Power linemen also began 
modifying 20 miles of line stretching from 
the Hampton Switching Station to the 
Parkersburg Switching Station in Franklin 
and Butler counties. Crews plan to complete 
reconductoring this section in 2013. 

Electrical maintenance crews kept busy 
with substation upgrades throughout the 
year. They retired the Eaton North and 
Quirin substations and upgraded the Eaton 
South and Spencer Industrial substations 
with new transformers, regulators and 
bussing, increasing the substations’ 
capacities from 5,000 kVA to 7,500 kVA. 
Crews also upgraded the Laurens and 
Ayrshire substations to serve a new feed 
mill on Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative’s 
lines. New transformers and a new line 
switch upgraded Union Substation from 
34.5 kV to 69 kV. Several other substations 
received upgrades during the year with new 
transformers and regulators, increasing 
capacities from 1,500 kVA to 2,500 kVA.

Electrical maintenance crews replaced 
oil-filled circuit breakers with sf6 gas-filled 
breakers at Sherwood and Storm Lake 
switching stations and installed new micro-
processor-based relays at Galbraith and 
Sherwood switching stations.

Late in 2012, construction began on the 
new Carrollton Switching Station, 10 
miles south of Glidden. This facility will 
increase reliability in Raccoon Valley Electric 
Cooperative’s service territory.

Corn Belt Power crews constructed the 
new Dinsdale Switching Station on a former 
diesel plant site southeast of Reinbeck. The 
facility increases reliability for members of 
Grundy County REC.

In November, electrical maintenance crews 
reached their goal of having Corn Belt 
Power transformers and regulators free of 
polychlorinated biphenyl contaminated oil. 
Not only does being PCB-free make Corn 
Belt Power compliant with Environmental 
Protection Agency standards, but equipment 
replacements also increase reliability of 
service to members.

In October, system operators participated in 
two Midwest Independent System Operator 
restoration drills, simulating procedures to 
be implemented should the entire Midwest 
electrical system experience a power 
outage.

Engineering and  
System Operations

Prairie 
energy 
Cooperative
Prairie Energy Cooperative and Iowa 
Area Development Group helped bring 
more than $200,000 worth of surplus 
school supplies to rural Iowa schools 
in January 2012. Prairie Energy  
employees helped distribute the  
supplies to 27 school districts in  
Humboldt, Wright and Franklin  
counties.

Scott Stecher
Corn Belt Power Director,  

representing Prairie Energy Cooperative
secretary, Corn Belt Power Board

Page 11

sUrPlUs sChool sUPPlies

rooted in oUr communities1. Mike Finnegan, journeyman electrician, and Matt wittrock, 
journeyman field technician, string new copper conductor at 
eaton south substation, spencer. Connor almond and Justin 
hinners, apprentice electricians, secure conductor and remove 
retired arrestors. new transformers, regulators and bussing 
increased the substation’s capacity from 5,000 kva to 7,500  
kva. 2. lynn Miller, communications superintendent, oversees 
construction of a new microwave tower at the Carrollton 
substation. the new tower will expand Corn Belt Power’s 
communication coverage area when the substation is converted 
to a switching station in 2013. 3. system operators Mike 
sutter, Paul Clay and Joel haynes look over the system map 
during a restoration drill oct. 23 in humboldt.
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1. trent Petersen, apprentice 
lineman, and adam Bird, 

journeyman lineman, work 
on the hampton-sheffield 

reconductoring project.  
2. Mike Finnegan, journeyman 

electrician, Connor almond, 
apprentice electrician,  

and Joel harklau, journeyman 
electrician, upgrade the eaton 

south substation.  
3. Justin hinners, apprentice 

electrician, helps with 
installation of a new 

regulator in the eaton  
south substation.

4. Mark saxton and ethan Miller, apprentice linemen, 
reconductor the hampton-sheffield line. 5. Jon 
girres, journeyman electrician, retrofills a regulator 
with new mineral oil at the Farmland substation 
near iowa Falls. this was the last piece of equipment 
containing polychlorinated biphenyl contaminated oil. 
the Corn Belt Power system is now PCB-free.  
6. ethan Miller and Mark saxton, apprentice linemen, 
and shane darr, journeyman lineman, work on the 
dover-laurens reconductoring project.
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“
“

WiTh iTs nOV. 15 PuRChAsE 
of additional interest in the CBEC Railway, 
Council Bluffs, Corn Belt Power doubled 
its ownership share and now wholly owns 
the railroad along with Central Iowa Power 
Cooperative. The railway, which provides 
two choices of rail delivery to the Walter 
Scott Energy Center, had additional shares 
available for sale when Berkshire Hathaway 
had to divest itself of its CBEC Railway 
ownership due to its purchase of the BNSF 
Railway.

Duane Arnold Energy Center, Palo, 
underwent a planned maintenance and 
refueling outage in October and November. 
Operators replaced approximately one-third 
of the fuel rods in the reactor with new 
fuel, recoated the torus, rewound the 
main generator and conducted routine 
maintenance and repairs at the plant.

Employees completed several maintenance 
projects at Wisdom Station, Spencer,  
throughout the year. During a scheduled 
outage in May, crews replaced bypass pipes 
in the cooling tower for Wisdom Unit 1, 
installed a new communication transformer 
and wireless communication system at 
the well field and rebuilt the refractory 
that surrounds the area where the burners 
enter the boiler. Wisdom Unit 2 reached a 
milestone in July, tallying 1,000 fired hours 

since going commercial eight years ago.  
Low natural gas prices helped keep the  
unit competitive, especially during 
hot summer days when system load 
requirements were high.

Basin Electric Power Cooperative added the 
$405-million Deer Creek Station, Brookings 
County, S.D., to its power supply in August. 
Basin Electric’s first combined-cycle unit, 
this 300-net megawatt capacity power plant 
features two turbine-generator sets: one 
powered by natural gas, the other driven 
by steam. 

In 2012, Basin Electric also started 
construction of two 45-megawatt capacity 
natural gas plants in western North Dakota. 
Equipped with clutches, the units will be 
able to serve as synchronous condensers 
and operate independently of the turbine.

Corn Belt Power’s Watts Smart® load 
management program began active load 
control in January. By the end of 2012, the 
program was controlling approximately 
3,500 water heaters when the system load 
surpassed a setpoint, calculated by using 
weather and historical data. Wholesale 
power savings from load control totaled 
approximately $400,000. Corn Belt Power 
passed those savings on to the co-ops 
actively controlling load.

Generation

niMeCa
register’s annUal great BiKe ride aCross iowa

The City of Webster City, a member of North Iowa  
Municipal Electric Cooperative Association, hosted 
more than 10,000 people for RAGBRAI in July 2012. 
Crews made sure plenty of power was available to 
the city’s visitors. ronalD Deiber

Corn Belt Power Director, representing niMECA
Vice President, Corn Belt Power Board
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the newly built deer Creek station, a 300-net megawatt capacity natural gas plant, 
is Basin electric Power Cooperative’s first combined-cycle unit. 

Basin Electric Power Cooperative  
added the $405-million deer Creek 
Station, Brookings County, S.d.,  

to its power supply in August. 
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1. Kevin white, shift operator, replaces a bypass pipe on the cooling tower during a scheduled outage at wisdom station May 14-25.  
2. the CBeC railway at walter scott energy Center, Council Bluffs, connects to both the Union Pacific and BnsF railroads.

21

2012 Energy  
SUPPLiEd By CORN BELT POwER TO BASiN ELECTRiC

CORN BELT POwER GENERATiON mix 2012
(dELiVEREd TO mEmBER SySTEmS)

  75% coal 10% renewable/other 1% natural gas 

 7% renewable hydro  5% purchase  2%  nuclear 

Mwh Mwh annUal CaPaCity FaCtor
loCation FUel 2011 2012 2012

wisdoM 1 Spencer, Iowa Coal 12,766 3,005 0.9%

wisdoM 2 Spencer, Iowa Natural Gas/Fuel oil 4,139 3,359 1.0%

daeC Palo, Iowa Nuclear 521,523 434,700 79.5%

walter sCott 3 Council Bluffs, Iowa Coal 194,420 176,315 76.6%

walter sCott 4 Council Bluffs, Iowa Coal 317,898 307,594 76.4%

neal 4 Sioux City, Iowa Coal 525,262 572,064 86.9%

Crosswind Ayrshire, Iowa Wind 72,763 76,196 41.3%

hanCoCK Hancock County, Iowa Wind 27,760 29,398 29.8%

ileC wind Superior/Lakota, Iowa Wind 76,380 79,163 42.9%

 

BUTLer COUnTY reC
sCholarshiP PrograM
Butler County REC annually awards three $500  
scholarships to students who are the top three  
finalists in Butler County REC’s Youth Tour program. 
Kaitlin Little, Tripoli, received one of the scholarships 
in 2012 and attends Iowa State University, Ames. DonalD FelDman

Corn Belt Power Director, representing Butler County REC
President, Corn Belt Power Board
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ThE RuRAl uTiliTiEs sERViCE 
approved a $55.8 million loan for Corn Belt 
Power in July. The loan will help finance 
generation system improvements and 
minority ownership in the Walter Scott, Jr. 
Energy Center Unit 4. It includes funding for 
environmental improvement projects such 
as the addition of a scrubber and baghouse 
and replacement of a low-pressure steam 
turbine at Neal 4, Sioux City. Loan funds will 
also help finance capital projects at Wisdom 
Unit 2, Walter Scott 3 and Duane Arnold 
Energy Center.

Two ratings agencies — Fitch Ratings and 
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services —
published A- ratings for Corn Belt Power in 
late July and August, marking the first time 
in the cooperative’s history that it has been 
financially rated. The Corn Belt Power board 
of directors decided to seek an indenture as 
part of the cooperative’s risk mitigation plan, 
ensuring access to financing in the future.

finance and 
Administration

Franklin reC 
edgington Field
Sheffield’s Edgington Field is brighter now thanks 
to Franklin REC’s line crew. The co-op installed six 
poles to light the field in the spring of 2012. Kids 
from kindergarten through eighth grade use the 
field for Little League baseball and softball games. Dale SchaeFer

Corn Belt Power Director, representing franklin REC 
Assistant secretary/Treasurer, Corn Belt Power Board
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• Power supply strategy

• Competitive electric rates

• Vibrant service area

• Contract with Basin Electric

• Contract with member 
cooperatives

• Ability to set its own rates

• Firm service territory boundaries

• Healthy Iowa economy

RATiNGS AGENCiES LiSTEd ThESE AS  
CORN BELT POwER’S STRENGThS

1. a $55.8 million loan that the rural Utilities service approved for Corn Belt Power in July will be used for several environmental projects, 
including the addition of a scrubber and baghouse at neal 4, sioux City. 2. Mike thatcher, vice president, generation; Karen Berte, senior vice 
president, finance and administration; and Ken Kuyper, executive vice president and general manager, look over the presentation made to 
rating agencies. in its first financial rating, Corn Belt Power received two a- ratings.
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WiTh iOWA’s JAn. 3 PREsiDEnTiAl 
caucus receiving national attention, electric 
co-op representatives attended numerous 
campaign events, asking the question, “As 
President, what will you do to make sure we 
have the energy we will need in the future?” 
Corn Belt Power created YouTube videos of 
several of the candidates’ answers. 

On the federal level, electric co-op 
representatives attended the Legislative 
Rally in Washington, D.C., in May and 
returned for the Fall Fly-In in September. 
Keeping coal combustion residuals classified 
as non-hazardous, maintaining Rural Utilities 
Service financing and preserving the Power 
Marketing Administrations headlined the list 
of concerns. Protecting the affordability and 
reliability of co-ops’ power supply remains a 
top priority. The fall trip also emphasized the 
importance of bringing the farm bill to the 
floor of the House.

Redistricting after the 2010 census resulted 
in a new congressional district for much 
of Corn Belt Power’s service territory. 
Congressman Steve King and former Iowa 
First Lady Christie Vilsack campaigned for 
the new 4th Congressional District seat 
and visited Corn Belt Power’s Humboldt 
headquarters. U.S. Sen. Chuck Grassley also 
visited Humboldt as part of his 99-county 
annual tour.

Co-op leaders communicated with state 
representatives throughout the year, 
beginning with the Welcome Back Reception 
in January. The Iowa Senate passed co-op-
supported stray voltage legislation during 
REC Day on the Hill in March. Co-ops 
scheduled legislative meetings across 
the state after the Nov. 6 election. Newly 
drawn districts resulted in changes in 
representation and the need to familiarize 
new legislators with the mission of electric 
cooperatives. 

Early in 2012, electric co-ops communicated 
their disappointment in the final Utility 
Mercury and Air Toxics Standards issued 
by the Environmental Protection Agency. 
The National Rural Electric Cooperative 
Association expressed doubt that the utility 
industry as a whole — and cooperatives in 
particular — could meet the new standards 
in three years. 

The U.S. Department of Energy proposed 
changing water heater efficiency standards, 
essentially eliminating the use of large-
capacity electric resistance water heaters 
in residential and commercial buildings. 
Corn Belt Power and its members sent 
letters explaining that this proposal would 
undermine and potentially eliminate the 
Watts Smart® load management program 
— one of many demand response programs 
that Congress has directed the DOE to 
support. 

Government Relations
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1. rep. linda Upmeyer meets with don Feldman, Corn Belt 
Power board president and Butler County reC director, 
during a november legislative meeting in Mason City.  
2. electric cooperative representatives from iowa meet 
with sen. tom harkin in september during the legislative 
Fly-in. the group urged iowa’s members of Congress to 
oppose energy secretary steven Chu’s proposal to  
repurpose the Power Marketing administrations.  
3. distribution cooperative managers and Corn Belt Power 
staff members welcome Congressman steve King, candi-
date for iowa’s newly drawn 4th Congressional district, 
and iowa secretary of agriculture Bill northey to Corn 
Belt Power headquarters July 3 in humboldt. 4. sen. Jack 
Kibbie, left, listens as Kevin rasmussen, board president, 
humboldt County reC, and larry tilton, director, Corn 
Belt Power and humboldt County reC, explain electric 
co-ops’ views on current issues during the welcome Back 
reception Jan. 10 in des Moines. 5. at a campaign stop 
in humboldt before the iowa caucuses in January, Marena 
Fritzler, right, graphic designer, asks rep. Michele Bach-
mann, candidate for President, about her plan to ensure 
the U.s. has the electricity it will need in the future. 

41

2 53

iowa Lakes 
electric Cooperative
Throughout the territory served by 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative,  
members are beautifying their  
farmsteads by displaying large  
wooden quilt blocks on their barns. 
Linemen from Iowa Lakes Electric  
Cooperative show their community  
commitment by mounting the barn  
quilts at no charge to members.

l. Kirby range
Corn Belt Power Director,  

representing iowa lakes Electric Cooperative
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CORn BElT POWER COnTinuED 
to assist its member co-ops with energy 
efficiency efforts throughout the year. Most 
co-ops showed good progress in 2012 
toward their 2010-2014 energy efficiency 
goals filed with the Iowa Utilities Board.

Although estimated deemed kilowatt-hour 
savings from energy efficiency activities 
in 2012 were below the 2012 goals, at the 
end of the year, co-ops collectively were 
still ahead of their five-year (2010-2014) 
combined program goals.

Corn Belt Power energy efficiency incentives 
paid to co-op members during the year 
totaled more than $66,000 for commercial 
and industrial/agricultural members 
and more than $531,000 for residential 
members. For residential incentives, 
geothermal heat pumps and air source heat 
pumps topped the list, with rebates paid of 
more than $174,000 and just under $76,000, 
respectively.

Lighting retrofits and installations were 
responsible for about 62 percent of REC 
commercial and industrial/agricultural 

estimated annual deemed kWh savings 
in 2012; lighting accounted for about 18 
percent of residential annual deemed  
kWh savings.

The number of rebates paid for energy-
efficient water heaters climbed in 2012 to 
719, compared to 554 the previous year.

Education efforts throughout the year 
helped members learn how to save 
energy and money. Programs included the 
Momentum is Building conference held 
for contractors in February, sponsorship of 
the Iowa State Fair 4-H Building Aug. 9-19, 
sponsorship of a tent display at the Farm 
Progress Show Aug. 28-30, the Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative/ Touchstone Energy 
Clay County Fair booth in September, 
and placement of the Touchstone Energy 
Cooperatives’ “Together We Save” television 
and radio spots throughout the year. Corn 
Belt Power purchased an energy bike 
display for members to demonstrate how 
much more energy incandescent bulbs 
require compared to compact fluorescent 
lamps or light emitting diodes.

Corn Belt Power coordinated several 
target marketing campaigns sent to co-op   
members throughout the year, encouraging 
their participation in “Pull the Plug” and 
other energy efficiency programs. A holiday 
lighting campaign prompting members to 
complete an online survey about their  
water heaters and interest in load 
management achieved an impressive 18 
percent response rate.

In July and August, Corn Belt Power 
assisted with NIPCO-hosted bus tours to 
Basin Electric and Western Area Power 
Administration facilities for directors of 
member co-ops. Basin Electric brought 
its “Story Behind the Switch” program 
to several schools in Corn Belt Power’s 
member co-ops’ service territories in 
January.

Corporate Relations team members received 
two Spotlight on Excellence Awards in 2012, 
with a first-place Award of Excellence in the 
Best Annual Report to Members category 
and a second place Award of Merit in the 
Best Photo Essay contest.

kwh 2012 goal Percent of 2012 goal
residential reBates 4,074,199 51.0%

PUll the PlUg 396,895 5.0%

Change a light 834,277 10.4%

serviCe ConCePts online store 17,617 0.2%

total residential 5,322,988 7,990,845 66.6%

C&i/ag reBates 1,494,286 75.0%

Change a light C&i/ag 141,600 7.1%

total C&i/ag 1,635,887 1,992,535 82.1%

total 6,958,875 9,983,380 69.7%

Corporate Relations; 
Energy Efficiency

2012 deemed kwh Savings

Grundy County reC
revolving loan FUnds
Chad Van Wechel was ready to expand his lawn 
care and snow removal business, Precision Lawn 
Care, Grundy Center. Grundy County REC and Corn 
Belt Power issued loans from their revolving loan 
funds to help construct a new office and shop for 
the local business.

larry rohach
Corn Belt Power Director,  

representing Grundy County REC
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1. Corporate relations team members received spotlight on excellence awards with a first-place award of excellence in the Best annual report 
to Members category and a second-place award of Merit for the Best Photo essay. 2. staffing the touchstone energy booth at the iowa state 
Fair, Mike Moran, member service representative, Calhoun County reC, helps an attendee understand how much less electricity is required to light 
compact fluorescent lamps or light emitting diodes compared to incandescent bulbs.
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WORkinG WiTh iTs MEMBER 
cooperatives, Corn Belt Power focused 
on developing opportunities for new 
and expanding businesses in the service 
territory. Development projects included 
new industrial parks and plans for 
speculative buildings. 

In May, John Paladino, newly appointed 
administrator of USDA’s Rural Business and 
Cooperative Programs, visited Corn Belt 
Power and Country Maid, West Bend, a 
recipient of loans from Corn Belt Power’s 
revolving loan fund.

The January issue of Wallace’s Farmer 
magazine featured Corn Belt Power’s 
business development programs in 
an article titled, “Co-ops Vital in Rural 
Economic Development.”

The Iowa Area Development Group 
honored nine Iowa companies with 2012 
Iowa Venture Awards. Corn Belt Power 
member cooperatives serve four of the 
recipients:

•  Murphy-Brown LLC, a member of 
Humboldt County REC, completed a  
$1.5 million investment to its Algona 
Feed Mill. 

•  DuPont Pioneer opened a 200,000- 
square-foot regional distribution center  
in Spencer that Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative serves. 

•  Advanced Drainage System, Inc. invested 
$10 million in a 45,000-square-foot 
Hampton facility that Franklin REC serves.

•  Dow AgroSciences opened a new 
29,500-square-foot, $10 million facility 
and relocated the company’s central Iowa 
field research to a site near Ames that 
Midland Power Cooperative serves. 

Business development NEw iNdUSTRiAL PARkS
• East Lake Industrial Park, Spirit Lake, 

served by Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative

• Humboldt Business Park, Humboldt, 
reclaimed brownfield site, served by 
Humboldt County REC

NEw SPECULATiVE BUiLdiNGS
• Humboldt Business Park, Humboldt; a 

commercial speculative building project 
was approved in 2012, to be served by 
Humboldt County REC

• Butler Logistics Park, Shell Rock; 
construction of a 30,000-square-foot 
speculative building was approved, to be 
served by Butler County REC

NEw LOAdS
• Advanced Drainage Systems, Hampton, 

served by Franklin REC

• Casey’s General Store, Webster City, 
served by the City of Webster City

• City of Dike, project coordinated by Butler 
County REC and Grundy County REC; 
served by Grundy County REC

• Centurion Hatchery, Goldfield, served by 
Prairie Energy Cooperative; will hatch 18 
million birds per year

• Pioneer Distribution Facility, Spencer, 
served by Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative; 
this is a new 200,000-square-foot seed 
corn warehouse and distribution center

• Pro Cooperative Feed Mill, Ayrshire, 
served by Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative

• MIDAS bus facility, Webster City, served 
by the City of Webster City

• Truck stop at the intersection of new 
Highway 20 and Highway 4, Calhoun 
County, to be served by Calhoun County 
REC; construction will begin in the spring 
of 2013

• Voyager Aluminum, Humboldt, served 
by Humboldt County REC; located in the 
Northwest Industrial Park

ExPANdEd LOAdS
• Bridges Bay, Okoboji, added new cabin 

homes, served by Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative

• Hall Industries, Franklin County, operation 
expansion, served by Franklin REC

• Hillshire Brands, added turkey barns at 
several sites, served by Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative and Calhoun County REC

• Iowa Corn Processors, Glidden, business 
expansion, served by Raccoon Valley 
Electric Cooperative

• Iowa Protein Solutions, Estherville, 
equipment upgrade, served by Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative

• Life Line, Sumner, building expansion, 
served by Butler County REC

• Murphy Mill, Algona, operation 
expansion, served by Humboldt County 
REC

• New hog sites, grain bins, numerous 
sites, served by Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative, Raccoon Valley Electric 
Cooperative and Prairie Energy 
Cooperative

• New homes, many with geothermal heat 
pumps, served by Raccoon Valley Electric 
Cooperative

• North Iowa Fabrication, Rockford, 
building expansion, served by Butler 
County REC

• Rembrandt Enterprises, Rembrandt, 
added new building, served by Iowa  
Lakes Electric Cooperative

• Rosenboom Machine and Tool, Spirit 
Lake, equipment upgrades, served by 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative

• Unverferth Manufacturing Company, 
rural Butler County, operation expansion, 
served by Butler County REC

CORN BELT POwER REVOLViNG  
LOAN fUNd ACTiViTy

• American Tool & Engineering, Inc., 
Greene; $106,000 IRP loan for equipment 
purchases

• Allison Family Dental, P.C., Allison; 
$59,732 REDL&G loan for purchase of 
business

• Chad Van Wechel, Grundy Center; 
$150,000 REDL&G loan for construction 
of buildings

• City of Goldfield, $104,460 IRP loan for 
sewer and water to industrial park

• Country Maid, West Bend; $115,000 IRP 
loan for construction costs to prepare for 
new equipment line

• Humboldt County Housing 
Development Corporation, Humboldt; 
$75,000 REDL&G loan for Building Trades 
house 

• Humboldt County Housing 
Development Corporation, Humboldt; 
$85,000 REDL&G loan for Eagle Ridge 
Addition land purchase

• Kossuth Regional Health Center, Algona; 
$360,000 new REDL&G for renovations to 
the Emergency Room

• Butler County Resource & Development, 
Shell Rock; $150,000 REDL&G for new 
speculative building

• Humboldt County Development 
Association, Humboldt; up to $150,000 
REDL&G for new commercial speculative 
building

Humboldt County reC
arts Festival
The Humboldt Area Arts Community hosts its Arts Festival 
free of charge for residents of Humboldt and surrounding 
communities. Membership contributions from Humboldt 
County REC, Corn Belt Power and Basin Electric help fund 
the organization, which awards scholarships, offers art 
classes and hosts a community photography exhibit. larry tilton

Corn Belt Power Director,  
representing humboldt County RECroo
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Brittany dickey, left, development finance director, Corn Belt Power, visits with employees at american tool & engineering, inc., greene.  
the company, served by Butler County reC, is a recipient of Corn Belt Power revolving loan funds.

COrn BeLT POwer COOPeraTive | 2012 annUaL rePOrT Page 25



CORN BELT POWER COOPERATIVE | 2012 ANNUAL REPORTPage 26 Page 27

1. at the humboldt Business Park, 
Jim vermeer, vice president, business 
development, Corn Belt Power, and steve 
long, manager, humboldt County reC, look 
over plans for a new speculative building. 
an old fertilizer plant was razed at the 
site to make way for new development. 
2. in May, John Paladino, third from 
left, administrator, rural Business and 
Cooperative Programs, Usda, visits Country 
Maid, west Bend, a recipient of Usda loan 
funds. included in the visit are Jim vermeer, 
vice president, business development, 
and Brittany dickey, development finance 
director, Corn Belt Power. 3. hillshire 
Brands is building new turkey barns 
on sites served by Calhoun County reC 
and iowa lakes electric Cooperative. 4. 
Murphy-Brown, llC, algona, a member of 
humboldt County reC, received iadg’s 2012 
venture award, recognizing the company 
for its expansion and contribution to iowa’s 
economy. 5. Unverferth Manufacturing 
Company, greene, served by Butler County 
reC, expanded its operation in 2012. the 
company manufactures grain wagons. 

1

2 3 4

5

Boone Valley 
electric  
cooperative
Old playground equipment had 
become outdated and unsafe in the 
town of Renwick. Boone Valley Electric 
Cooperative, Corn Belt Power and 
Basin Electric donated funds in 2012 
to help build a new playground for the 
community’s children.

Page 27
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i ACT uniVERsiTy — A nAME 
representing the four values of integrity, 
accountability, commitment and teamwork — 
featured numerous training sessions with Corn 
Belt Power employees throughout the year. 
Kathy Peterson, consultant with PeopleWorks, 
Inc., conducted workshops on performance 
appraisals, listening skills, time management 
and generational differences.

Corn Belt Power began developing a 
SharePoint site during the year that will 
improve document storage, allow collaborative 
work on documents and increase efficiency of 
access to internal information.

In September, Bill Courter, director from 
Calhoun County REC, retired from the board 
and Harlan Reynolds succeeded him. Corn 
Belt Power lost Reynolds’ leadership when 
he passed away in January 2013. Terry Finley 
assumed the Calhoun County REC’s director 
seat on the Corn Belt Power board in February 
2013.

With the merger of Humboldt County REC 
and Midland Power Cooperative, Larry 
Tilton — director from Humboldt County 
REC — brought his service on the Corn Belt 
Power board to a close. At the end of the year, 
Michael Joynt — Corn Belt Power’s attorney 
for 42 years — retired from his position with 
Sullivan & Ward, P.C.

human Resources
new employees
Jill Pliner | accountant

Jacob Thorp | control operator

retirements
Ronald Lanning | general accountant

Promotions
Adam Bird | apprentice lineman to 
journeyman lineman

Andrew Stalzer | apprentice lineman 
to journeyman lineman

2012 service awards
Coleen Davis  |  accounts payable, 
35 years

Bill Foreman  |  groundman, 35 years

Kathy Saathoff  |  billing/accounting 
analyst, 25 years

Rick Skow  |  electrical maintenance 
foreman, 25 years

Mike Finnegan  |   journeyman 
electrician, 20 years

Kathy Taylor  |  vice president, 
corporate relations, 20 years

Dan Amato  |  shift operator, 15 years

Darcy Holland  |  administrative 
assistant, 15 years

Jeremy Stattelman  |  line foreman, 
15 years

Jennifer Arndorfer  |  human 
resources specialist, 10 years

Ryan Conlon  |  journeyman lineman, 
10 years

Brian Gibson  |  SCADA technician, 
10 years

Dennis Anderson  |  IT director, 5 
years

Brittany Dickey  |  development 
finance director, 5 years

Cody Montgomery  |  tractor 
operator, 5 years

Sue Richardson  |  administrative 
assistant, 5 years

Mike Sutter  |  system operator, 5 
years

Faith Warden  |  property 
accountant, 5 years

Jon Zeman  |  warehouse clerk, 5 
years

1 2 3

1. Corn Belt Power lost a friend and a leader with the death of 
harlan reynolds, director from Calhoun County reC, in January 
2013. 2. retiring in december 2012 are larry tilton, Corn 
Belt Power director from humboldt County reC; Michael Joynt, 
sullivan & ward, P.C., Corn Belt Power attorney since 1970; 
and Bill Courter, Corn Belt Power director from Calhoun County 
reC. Corn Belt Power recognized their years of service with 
engraved clocks. 3. Kathy Peterson, facilitator, Peopleworks, 
inc., conducts a training session for Corn Belt Power 
employees. workshops held throughout the year focused on 
performance appraisals, listening skills, time management 
and generational differences. 4. Jennifer arndorfer, human 
resources specialist, gathers donations from Corn Belt Power 
employees to give to families in need through Upper des 
Moines opportunity, inc.

4

Raccoon Valley  
electric  
Cooperative
energy-eFFiCient hoMes
Raccoon Valley Electric Cooperative 
and Corn Belt Power helped develop 
the Glidden High View Addition,  
Glidden, and partners with Des Moines 
Area Community College to build 
speculative homes in the new  
development. The energy-efficient 
homes help the community grow by 
encouraging families to live in Glidden.

DaviD onKen
Corn Belt Power Director,  

representing Raccoon Valley Electric Cooperative
Treasurer, Corn Belt Power Board
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Sales to Corn Belt Power member Cooperatives
CooPerative 2011 Kwh Billed By Corn Belt Power 2012 Kwh Billed By Corn Belt Power
Boone valley eleCtriC 
CooPerative  9,567,439 kWh  9,839,690 kWh

BUtler CoUnty  
reC  250,860,333 kWh  247,497,985 kWh

CalhoUn CoUnty  
reC  38,372,148 kWh  37,951,775 kWh

FranKlin  
reC  53,215,262 kWh  55,508,347 kWh

grUndy CoUnty  
reC  61,977,859 kWh  58,052,365 kWh

hUMBoldt CoUnty 
 reC  57,236,334 kWh 59,185,518  kWh

iowa laKes eleCtriC  
CooPerative  603,587,140 kWh 583,127,625 kWh

Midland Power  
CooPerative  245,290,466 kWh 254,618,069 kWh

Prairie energy  
CooPerative  234,914,452 kWh  267,957,611 kWh

raCCoon valley eleCtriC 
CooPerative  139,841,285 kWh  129,345,347 kWh

includes sales to reCs for special loads and municipals  

Corn Belt Power Cooperative 2012 highlights
2011 2012

total energy sales 1,852,999,741 kWh 1,851,303,322 kWh

reC PeaK deMand (no losses) 276,214  kW 276,777 kW

systeM PeaK deMand 319,456  kW 321,020 kW

Miles oF transMission lines * 1,740 1,749

distriBUtion sUBstations 150 148

eMPloyees 93 91

*includes jointly owned transmission lines

Midland Power Cooperative
ConCert with siMon estes
Midland Power Cooperative, Corn Belt Power and Basin 
Electric helped sponsor “A Hardin County Christmas 
Concert with Simon Estes,” raising funds for the Hardin 
County Arts and Culture Endowment Fund. Estes, an Iowa 
native, is an international opera star who donates his 
time to teach and sing with local students.
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ThE EnD Of 2012 BROuGhT 
to a conclusion the history of Humboldt 
County REC as it prepared to merge with 
Midland Power Cooperative in January 
2013. Midland Power celebrated the 20th 
anniversary of its consolidation of Hardin 
County REC and Greene County REC. 
Both Butler County REC and Franklin REC 
celebrated their 75th anniversaries.

Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative received 

the Wind Cooperative of the Year Award 
from the U.S. Department of Energy in 
recognition of the cooperative’s wind 
projects at Lakota and Superior. Corn Belt 
Power nominated Iowa Lakes for the award.

The Iowa Area Development Group 
honored Butler County REC and General 
Manager/CEO Bob Bauman with the 
Silver Shovel Award for the cooperative’s 
involvement in community development. 

Humboldt County Development Association 
also received the IADG Silver Shovel Award 
for its work in economic development.

Three member distribution cooperative 
general managers retired in 2012. Co-op 
leaders recognized Bob Bauman, Butler 
County REC; Terry Bruns, Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative; and Steve Long, 
Humboldt County REC, for their long-term 
commitment to rural electrification in Iowa.

member Cooperative 
Updates

1 2

1. at humboldt County reC’s informational meeting in March, dennis Puckett, attorney, sullivan & ward, P.C., announces that 80 percent of 
the co-op’s membership voted in favor of the merger between humboldt County reC and Midland Power Cooperative. ninety-three percent 
of Midland Power’s membership approved the measure. 2. iowa area development group honors Butler County reC and general Manager/Ceo 
Bob Bauman with the silver shovel award at Butler County reC’s annual meeting in March.

charleS gilbert
Corn Belt Power Director,  

representing Midland Power Cooperative
Corn Belt Power Representative to Basin Electricroo
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new CanCer Center 
Corn Belt Power, Basin Electric and CoBank donated a total of $25,000 to the new Trinity Cancer 
Center, Fort Dodge. The new cancer center offers radiation therapy in addition to chemotherapy, 
surgery and support services to patients with cancer. Previously, patients needing radiation therapy 
had to travel up to 150 miles for treatment.

BUtter Braid ProdUCtion FaCility
Country Maid, West Bend, accessed capital from Corn Belt Power’s revolving loan fund to help  
build its new production facility, where the company produces its Butter Braid pastries. The  
project retained 43 jobs and created 23 jobs.roo
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Corn Belt Power CooPerative enhances the quality of life for members, employees and communities. Corn 
Belt Power, headquartered in humboldt, iowa, is a generation and transmission electric cooperative owned 
by its member systems. Corn Belt Power provides electricity to 10 member cooperatives and one municipal 
electric cooperative that serve farms, rural residences, small towns and commercial and industrial members 
in 41 counties in northern iowa. Corn Belt Power responsibly provides a safe, reliable and affordable supply of 
electricity and helps make the quality of life in our communities the best it can be.



1 245 6

7
8

9
10

3

 1. iowa lakes electric Cooperative | 2. humboldt County reC | 3. Boone valley electric Cooperative  
4.  Prairie energy Cooperative | 5. Franklin reC | 6. Butler County reC  | 7. raccoon valley electric 
Cooperative  | 8. Calhoun County reC  | 9. Midland Power Cooperative | 10. grundy County reC

 north iowa Municipal electric Cooperative association (niMeCa). serving municipal utilities of 
algona, alta, Bancroft, Coon rapids,  graettinger, grundy Center, laurens, Milford, new hampton,  
spencer, sumner, webster City & west Bend. 

Page 34

2012 mEmBER

COOPERATiVES

 Ken Kuyper 
Executive Vice President  

& General Manager

Kevin bornhoFt 
Vice President,  

Engineering & system Operations

miKe thatcher
Vice President,  

Generation

Karen berte 
senior Vice President,  

finance & Administration

Kathy taylor
Vice President,  

Corporate Relations

Jim vermeer 
Vice President,  

Business Development

Corn Belt Power department heads iNdEPENdENT AUdiTORS’ REPORT
The Board of Directors 
Corn Belt Power Cooperative:

report on the Financial StatementS
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Corn Belt Power Cooperative, which comprise the balance sheets as of December 
31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of revenues and expenses, membership capital, comprehensive income, and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

management’S reSponSibility For the Financial StatementS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

auDitorS’ reSponSibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and in accordance with the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The proce-
dures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects, the financial position of Corn Belt Power 
Cooperative as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

other reporting requireD by Government AuditinG StAndArdS
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 25, 2013 on our consideration of 
Corn Belt Power Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over  
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing  
Standards in considering Corn Belt Power Cooperative’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Omaha, Nebraska 
February 25, 2013
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assets    2012   2011 
Electric plant:  
 In service   $ 415,934,691   403,824,616
  Less accumulated depreciation   (216,082,453)   (209,342,872)
      199,852,238   194,481,744
 Construction work in progress   32,004,723   11,937,368
 Nuclear fuel, net of amortization   11,812,999    13,702,004 
      243,669,960    220,121,116 

Other property and investments:
 Nonutility property   259,971   256,384
 Investment in the National Rural Utilities Cooperative
  Finance Corporation (NRUCFC)   4,652,910   4,637,347
 Decommissioning fund   35,197,122   31,102,437
 Other investments   18,964,653   14,553,948
 Special funds   7,132,256   97,329
 Notes receivable   4,978,712   5,314,861
 Other assets   1,930,240    1,642,127 
      73,115,864    57,604,433 

Deferred charges:
 DAEC regulatory asset   3,183,744   3,334,157
 Deferred refueling costs   2,925,038   1,375,319
 Decommissioning regulatory asset   31,378,337   29,979,106
 Other    288,453    — 
      37,775,572    34,688,582 

Current assets: 
 Cash and cash equivalents   1,398,823   4,106,427
 Special funds   —   1,250,000
 Member accounts receivable   10,596,075   8,702,793
 Other receivables   270,763   240,451
 Inventories:
  Fuel    9,608,549   9,644,016
  Materials and supplies   9,509,580   9,162,123
 Prepayments   262,432    230,374 
      31,646,222    33,336,184 
     $ 386,207,618    345,750,315 

BALANCE ShEETS
dECEmBER 31, 2012 ANd 2011

BALANCE ShEETS
dECEmBER 31, 2012 ANd 2011

see accompanying notes to financial statements.see accompanying notes to financial statements.

membership capital and liabilities  2012   2011 
Membership capital:
 Memberships, at $100 per membership $  1,200  1,200
 Deferred patronage dividends, restricted    31,751,200  24,667,500
 Other equities, per accompanying statements    50,414,091  47,745,336
 Accumulated other comprehensive income    4,355,268  1,859,543
       86,521,759  74,273,579

Long-term debt: 
 Federal Financing Bank    171,419,716  174,746,270
 Revenue bonds    14,915,000  —
 NRUCFC     5,630,284  6,929,023
 USDA intermediary relending program    4,341,655  4,239,095
       196,306,655  185,914,388
 Less – current maturities of long-term debt    12,280,548  14,076,504
       184,026,107  171,837,884

Other long-term liabilities:
 DAEC decommissioning liability    62,183,000  59,222,000
 Ash landfill retirement obligation    830,620  952,868
       63,013,620  60,174,868

Current liabilities:
 Current maturities of long-term debt    12,280,548  14,076,504
 Short-term debt    30,000,000  16,000,000
 Accounts payable    6,735,206  4,149,113
 Accrued property and other taxes    2,865,196  3,280,502
 Deferred credit    —  1,250,000
 Accrued interest and other    765,182  707,865
       52,646,132  39,463,984
    $  386,207,618  345,750,315 
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STATEmENTS Of REVENUES  
ANd ExPENSES
yEARS ENdEd dECEmBER 31, 2012 ANd 2011
     2012   2011 
Operating revenues:  
 Sale of electric energy  $ 115,926,441    106,637,930
 Lease revenue   1,440,758    1,429,385
 Other    4,736,723    4,531,244 
      122,103,922    112,598,559 

Operating expenses:
 Operation: 
  Steam and other power generation   35,655,015   38,238,311
  Purchased power, net   42,057,507   31,254,615
  Transmission   5,295,787   5,740,316
  Sales    2,326,610   2,460,597
  Administrative and general   3,414,078   3,513,566
 Maintenance:
  Steam and other power generation   7,051,903   6,617,314
  Transmission   1,783,202   1,915,588
  General plant   143,506   149,416
 Depreciation and decommissioning   9,538,500   9,887,169
 Gain on the disposition of property    (85,230)  (491)  
      107,180,878    99,776,401 
   Net operating revenues   14,923,044    12,822,158 

Interest and other deductions: 
 Interest on long-term debt   8,994,899   9,253,784
 Interest during construction    (191,816 )  (66,744)  
 Other interest and deductions   231,798    152,126 
      9,034,881    9,339,166 
   Net operating margin   5,888,163    3,482,992 

Nonoperating margin:
 Interest and dividend income   525,482   495,526
 Patronage income   4,114,465   4,040,865
 Other, net    19,393    88,768 
      4,659,340    4,625,159 
   Net margin  $ 10,547,503    8,108,151 

see accompanying notes to financial statements.see accompanying notes to financial statements.

    2012   2011 
Net margin  $ 10,547,503  8,108,151 
Change in unrealized gain in fair value of investments  2,495,725  (2,935,909 )
 Comprehensive income $ 13,043,228  5,172,242 

  other equities  
                 accumulated
        Deferred      reserve for   other
        patronage   Statutory   contingent  comprehensive
  total   membership   dividends   surplus   losses   income 

Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 69,571,636   1,200  18,306,100   6,787,484  39,681,400  4,795,452
 2011 net margin  8,108,151   —  6,831,699   700,000  576,452  —
 Revenue deferred patronage dividends  276,301   —  276,301   —  —  —
 Change in fair value of investments  (2,935,909 )  —  —   —  —  (2,935,909 )
 Patronage dividends paid  (746,600 )  —  (746,600 )  —  —  — 
Balance, December 31, 2011  74,273,579   1,200  24,667,500   7,487,484  40,257,852  1,859,543
 2012 net margin  10,547,503   —  7,878,748   2,262,516  406,239  —
 Revenue deferred patronage dividends  181,252   —  181,252   —  —  —
 Change in fair value of investments  2,495,725   —  —   —  —  2,495,725
 Patronage dividends paid  (976,300 )  —  (976,300 )  —  —  — 
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 86,521,759   1,200  31,751,200   9,750,000  40,664,091  4,355,268 

STATEmENTS Of  
COmPREhENSiVE iNCOmE
yEARS ENdEd dECEmBER 31, 2012 ANd 2011

STATEmENTS Of  
mEmBERShiP CAPiTAL
yEARS ENdEd dECEmBER 31, 2012 ANd 2011
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     2012   2011 
Cash flows from operating activities: 
 Net margin     $ 10,547,503    8,108,151 
 Adjustments to reconcile net margin to net cash provided by
  operating activities:
   Depreciation and decommissioning   9,688,913    10,037,583 
   Amortization of nuclear fuel   3,717,155    4,526,062 
   Amortization of deferred refueling costs   1,735,908    1,833,760 
   Amortization of DAEC pension regulatory asset   —    1,631,000 
   Undistributed patronage earnings from other investments   (4,059,926)    (3,942,121)
   Changes in current assets and liabilities:
    Receivables   (1,923,594)    544,186 
    Inventories   (311,990)    676,242 
    Prepayments   (32,058)    10,100 
    Deferred refueling costs   (3,285,627)    100,064 
    Other – deferred charges   (293,318)    (4,026)
    Accounts payable   2,609,910    (2,593,328)
    Accrued property and other taxes   (415,306)    18,643 
    Deferred credit   (1,250,000)    (2,500,000)
    Accrued interest and other   62,182    347,300 
    DAEC pension costs   —     (1,665,114)
     Net cash provided by operating activities   16,789,752   17,128,502 
Cash flows from investing activities:    
 Additions to electric plant, net   (35,122,414)    (16,110,544)
 Additions to nuclear fuel   (1,828,150)    (5,105,988)
 Sale of nonutility plant    (3,587)    — 
 Distributions from (additions to) special funds   (5,822,118)    2,475,139 
 Additions to other investments, other assets, investment in NRUCFC,   
  and notes receivable   (137,054)   149,029  
     Net cash used in investing activities   (42,913,323)    (18,592,364)
Cash flows from financing activities:
 Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt   24,758,000    5,335,667 
 Repayment of long-term debt   (14,365,733)    (14,259,411)
 Short-term borrowings, net   14,000,000    13,000,000 
 Deferred patronage dividends paid   (976,300)    (746,600)
     Net cash provided by financing activities   23,415,967   3,329,656  
     Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (2,707,604)     1,865,794 
Cash and cash equivalents at:
 Beginning of year    4,106,427   2,240,633  
 End of year     $ 1,398,823   4,106,427  

STATEmENTS Of CASh fLOwS
yEARS ENdEd dECEmBER 31, 2012 ANd 2011

see accompanying notes to financial statements.

(1) organization
Corn Belt Power Cooperative (the Cooperative) is a Rural Utilities Service (RUS) financed generation and transmission cooperative created and 
owned by 10 distribution cooperatives and one municipal cooperative association. Electricity supplied by the Cooperative serves farms, small 
towns, and commercial and industrial businesses across counties in northern Iowa.

The Cooperative’s Board of Directors comprises one representative from each member cooperative and is responsible for, among other things, 
establishing rates charged to the member cooperatives.

(2)SigniFicant accounting policieS
The Cooperative maintains its accounting records in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts as prescribed by the RUS. The prepara-
tion of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and as-
sumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
The significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) regulatory matterS
The Cooperative’s utility operations are subject to provisions of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 980, Regulated Opera-
tions. Therefore, its utility operations recognize the effects of rate regulation by the Board of Directors and, accordingly, have recorded 
regulated assets to reflect the impact of regulatory items for which future rates are expected to recover and a regulated liability for 
revenues deferred at discretion of the Board of Directors. The regulatory assets are included within deferred charges and the regulatory 
liability is included within deferred credit on the balance sheets.

(b) electric plant
Electric plant is stated at original cost, which includes payroll and related benefits and interest during the period of construction.

Costs in connection with repairs of properties and replacement of items less than a unit of property are charged to maintenance expense. 
Additions to and replacements of units of property are charged to electric plant accounts.

Depreciation is provided using straight-line methods and RUS-prescribed lives. These provisions, excluding nuclear facilities, were equiva-
lent to a composite depreciation rate on gross plant of 2.63% and 2.88% for 2012 and 2011, respectively. In 2011, the depreciable lives for 
Neal #4 and Walter Scott #4 were changed from 32 to 61 and 32 to 42 years, respectively, due to changes in lives used by the majority 
owner operator of those electric plant units.

Under a joint-ownership agreement, the Cooperative has a 10% undivided interest in the Duane Arnold Energy Center (DAEC), a 
nuclear-fueled generating station, which was placed in service in 1974. The Cooperative is depreciating its interest in the DAEC and each 
year’s property additions subsequent to 1984 on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
(NRC) license for DAEC. The composite depreciation rate on gross plant for DAEC was 1.04% and 0.98% for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(c) DecommiSSioning oF Daec
The Cooperative recognizes and estimates an asset retirement obligation for its 10% share at the estimated cost to decommission DAEC. 
An NRC estimate of the decommissioning costs of DAEC was performed in 2008, and updated in 2010. This report estimated the Coop-
erative’s share of the decommissioning costs of DAEC to be approximately $76,159,700 (in 2008 dollars). The Cooperative is providing 
for overall nuclear decommissioning costs using a funding method, which assumes a 4% rate of inflation and a 3% real rate of return. 
The method is designed to accumulate a decommissioning reserve sufficient to cover the Cooperative’s share of decommissioning costs 
by the year 2034, the year in which the license expires.

The total fair value of the decommissioning funds accumulated at December 31, 2012 was $35,197,122, of which $21,568,060 has been 
placed in a fund legally restricted for use in decommissioning DAEC. The remaining $13,629,062, while not legally restricted, has been 
designated by the Cooperative for use in decommissioning DAEC. The total fair value of the decommissioning funds accumulated at 
December 31, 2011 was $31,102,437, of which $19,173,420 was legally restricted and $11,929,017, designated for decommissioning by 
the Cooperative.

NOTES TO fiNANCiAL STATEmENTS
dECEmBER 31, 2012 ANd 2011

notes to financial statements
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At December 31, 2012 and 2011, decommissioning investments were classified as available-for-sale and consisted of the following:

    amortized   unrealized   unrealized 
    cost   gains   losses   Fair value 
2012: 
 Obligations of U.S.
  government and
  agencies $ 1,384,170  39,576  7,472  1,416,274
 Corporate bonds and
  fixed income funds  2,815,922  145,325  7,734  2,953,513
 Managed futures funds  1,050,000  —  12,589  1,037,411
 Common and preferred
  stock and funds  17,864,462  4,280,297  465,005  21,679,754
 Hedge funds  162,912  33,901  —  196,813
 Cash and cash
  equivalents  811,569  —  —  811,569
 Foreign investments –        
  common stock  6,230,643  455,103  135,104  6,550,642
 Foreign investments –        
  government funds  484,985  66,161  —  551,146
   $ 30,804,663  5,020,363  627,904  35,197,122

    amortized   unrealized   unrealized 
    cost   gains   losses   Fair value 
2011: 
 Obligations of
  U.S. government         
  and agencies $ 2,744,132  116,266  3,776  2,856,622
 Corporate bonds and         
  fixed income funds  2,515,153  27,910  26,630  2,516,433
 Common and preferred         
  stocks and funds  13,764,998  2,761,044  584,949  15,941,093
 Hedge funds  315,845  26,704  —  342,549
 Cash and cash         
  equivalents  875,010  —  —  875,010
 Foreign investments –      
  common stock  8,542,771  404,521  868,812  8,078,480
 Foreign investments –      
  government funds  484,985  7,265  —  492,250
   $ 29,242,894  3,343,710  1,484,167  31,102,437

Maturities of securities classified as available-for-sale were as follows at December 31, 2012:

    amortized   Fair    
    cost   value 

Due within 1 year $ 3,040,357     3,203,744   
Due after 1 year and through 5 years  877,867     889,242   
Due after 5 years and through 10 years  481,025     522,728   
Due after 10 years  285,828     305,219   
Equity securities   24,095,105     28,230,396   
Cash and cash equivalents  811,569     811,569   
Managed futures   1,050,000     1,037,411   
Hedge funds   162,912     196,813   

   $ 30,804,663     35,197,122   

Realized gains and losses from the available-for-sale securities are determined on a specific-identification basis. Realized gains on investments 
available for sale were $806,497 and $1,226,379 for 2012 and 2011, respectively. These gains result in a corresponding decrease to the decom-
missioning regulatory asset.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Cooperative’s investments with unrealized losses that are not 
deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have 
been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2012.

  less than 12 months   12 months or greater   total 
  Fair   unrealized   Fair   unrealized   Fair   unrealized
  value   losses   value   losses   value   losses 

 Obligations of
  U.S. government and      
  agencies   $ 213,693    (2,734)   83,537  (4,738)   297,230    (7,472) 
 Corporate bonds and       
  fixed income funds     403,099    (4,105)   426,369    (3,630)   829,468    (7,735) 
 Common and preferred            
  stocks and funds     2,632,354    (154,942)   2,283,231    (310,063)   4,915,585    (465,005) 
 Hedge funds     —    —    —    —    —    —  
 Managed futures     349,810    (190)   687,601    (12,399)   1,037,411    (12,589) 
 Foreign investments – 
  government     —    —    —    —    —    —  
 Foreign investments 
  common stock     752,864  (29,567)  1,306,699    (105,536)  2,059,563  (135,103)
   $ 4,351,820  (191,538)   4,787,437    (436,366)   9,139,257    (627,904)

In evaluation of other-than-temporary impairment, the Cooperative considers its intent and ability to hold these investments for a period 
of time sufficient to allow for the anticipated recovery in the market value of these investments, which may be maturity, the severity of the 
decline, and the length of time and the extent to which fair value has been below cost. The Cooperative does not consider these invest-
ments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2012. Individually, none of the investments that have unrealized losses 
greater than 12 months are significant to the financial statements.

(d) nuclear Fuel
The cost of nuclear fuel is amortized to steam and other power generation expenses based on the quantity of heat produced for the 
generation of electric energy. Such amortization was $3,717,155 and $4,526,062 for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(e) other inveStmentS
Other investments consist of funds held in trust (mainly from patronage income), cash held for the Cooperative’s intermediary relending 
program (see note 9), and common and preferred stock.

(f) inventorieS
Inventories consist of fuel, primarily coal, emission allowances, and materials and supplies. The cost for inventories is determined on a 
weighted average basis.

The 1990 Clean Air Act (the Act) established the requirement for fossil fuel electric generating plants to hold sulfur dioxide (SO2) emission 
allowances. In 2009, the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) established a similar requirement for nitrous oxide (NOx) annual and seasonal 
emission allowances. The Act and CAIR allocate a certain number of emission allowances to owners of fossil fuel generating plants and 
established SO2, NOx annual, and NOx seasonal emission allowance trading programs. Emission allowances that have been granted 
to the Cooperative as a result of the Act do not have any cost, and therefore, the use of these emission allowances does not result in 
expense. From time to time, the Cooperative will purchase a quantity of each type of emission allowance to ensure an adequate number 
of allowances are held. The purchased allowances are combined with the allocated allowances to derive an average allowance cost each 
year for each type of emission allowance. Emission allowances purchased are capitalized in inventory and are charged to fuel expense as 
they are used in operations.

(g) intereSt During conStruction
Interest during construction represents the cost of funds used for construction and nuclear fuel refinement. The average rate was 1.1% 
for both 2012 and 2011 and is based on the Cooperative’s costs of financing.

(h) income taxeS
The Cooperative is exempt from federal and state income taxes under section 501(c)(12) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no 
provision for income taxes has been included in the Cooperative’s financial statements. The Cooperative recognizes the effect of income 
tax positions only if those positions are more likely than not of being sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the 
largest amount that is greater than 50% likely of being realized. Changes in recognition or measurement are reflected in the period in 
which the change in judgment occurs.

(i) StatementS oF caSh FlowS
For the purpose of reporting cash flows, the Cooperative considers temporary cash investments purchased with a maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash paid for interest was $9,277,534 and $9,388,682 for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

(j) operating revenueS anD coSt oF power
The Cooperative recognizes sales of electric energy and the related cost of electric energy produced or purchased when energy is deliv-
ered to customers.

notes to financial statements notes to financial statements
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(3)agreementS with baSin electric power cooperative
On September 1, 2009, the Cooperative became a Class A member of Basin Electric Power Cooperative (Basin Electric). As part of this agree-
ment, energy and capacity needs of the Cooperative above the Western Area Power Administration allocation and a separate 50 MW power 
purchase agreement with Basin Electric are to be provided by Basin Electric at Class A member rates. Further, the Cooperative sells the energy 
from its generation facilities at cost to Basin Electric but continues to be responsible for and own those facilities. Also, a portion of the 161 kV 
transmission system that is contiguous with Basin Electric is being leased to Basin Electric. During 2012 and 2011, as part of these agreements, 
the Cooperative purchased $75,440,865 and $69,664,037 of power and sold $66,307,876 and $69,858,423 of power to Basin Electric, which is 
recorded net in purchased power, net, in the statements of revenues and expenses.

(4)Fair value meaSurementS
(a) Fair value oF Financial inStrumentS
The following describes the carrying amounts and estimated fair value of financial instruments and the methods and assumptions that 
were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents, member accounts receivable, other receivables, special funds, short-term debt, accounts payable, and ac-
crued liabilities – The carrying amounts, at face value or cost plus accrued interest, approximate fair value because of the short maturity 
of these instruments.

Investment in the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation, other investments, and notes receivable – These accounts 
are recorded at cost. The Cooperative believes that the carrying value of these investments approximates fair value as of December 31, 
2012 and 2011 due to the nature of these accounts and interest rates of these accounts compared to market rates.

Decommissioning funds – The investments within the decommissioning funds are recorded at fair value. Equity securities classified as 
available-for-sale are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiplied by the quantity held. Debt securities classified 
as available-for-sale are measured using quoted market prices multiplied by the quantity held when quoted market prices are available. If 
quoted market prices are not available, the fair values are estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of similar securities with similar 
characteristics, or discounted cash flow. For hedge funds and managed future funds where no readily ascertainable market value exists, 
management, in consultation with their investment advisors, values these investments in good faith based upon the investment’s current 
financial statements or other information provided by the underlying investment advisor.

Long-term debt – The fair value of the Cooperative’s long-term debt is measured based on the borrowing rates currently available to the 
Cooperative for debt with similar terms and maturities. The fair values as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are estimated at $224,484,632 
and $218,725,893, respectively.

(b) Fair value hierarchy
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements, establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to 
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
(Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The 
three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 – Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Cooperative has the ability to 
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 – Inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
or indirectly.

Level 3 – Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

The following tables present assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2012 and 2011:

  Fair value measurements at 
  December 31, 2012 using 

     quoted prices    
     in active   Significant  
     markets for   other   Significant 
     identical   observable   unobservable 
  December 31,   assets   inputs   inputs 
  2012   (level 1)   (level 2)   (level 3) 

Assets:           
Special funds:      
 Obligations of the U.S.        
  government and       
  agencies  $  5,469,204    5,469,204    —    —  
Decommissioning fund:       
 Obligations of the U.S.        
  government and 
  agencies    1,416,274    1,416,274    —    —  
 Corporate bonds and fixed        
  income funds   2,953,513    2,953,513    —    —  
 Managed future funds   1,037,411    —    1,037,411    —  
 Common and preferred     
  stocks and funds   21,679,754    21,679,754    —    —  
 Hedge funds    196,813    —    —    196,813  
 Foreign investments – 
  government funds   551,146    551,146    —    —  
 Foreign investments –        
  common stock   6,550,642    6,550,642    —    —  
 Cash and cash equivalents   811,569    811,569    —    —  
    Total $ 40,666,326    39,432,102    1,037,411    196,813  

  Fair value measurements at 
  December 31, 2011 using 

     quoted prices    
     in active   Significant  
     markets for   other   Significant 
     identical   observable   unobservable 
  December 31,   assets   inputs   inputs 
  2011   (level 1)   (level 2)   (level 3) 

Assets:            
Cash equivalents:         
 Commercial paper  $  3,613,096  3,613,096  —  —
Decommissioning fund:        
 Obligations of the U.S.         
  and agencies     2,856,622  2,856,622  —  —
 Corporate bonds and fixed         
  income funds     2,516,433  2,516,433  —  —
 Common and preferred         
  stocks and funds     15,941,093  15,941,093  —  —
 Hedge funds      342,549  —  —  342,549
 Foreign investments –         
  government funds     492,250  492,250  —  —
 Foreign investments –          
  common stock     8,078,480  8,078,480  —  —
 Cash and cash equivalents     875,010  875,010  —  —
    Total   $  34,715,533  34,372,984  —  342,549

The following tables present the Cooperative’s activity for assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable 
inputs (Level 3) for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

Balance at December 31, 2010 $   2,246,221
 Sales     (1,826,313)  
 Realized loss on sale    111,965
 Unrealized gains included in other
  comprehensive income    (189,324 )
Balance at December 31, 2011    342,549   
 Sales     (152,933 )  
 Realized gain on sale    (15,517 )  
 Unrealized losses included in other   
  comprehensive income    22,714 

Balance at December 31, 2012 $   196,813 

notes to financial statements notes to financial statements
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(5) inveStment in the national rural utilitieS cooperative Finance corporation (nrucFc),  
noteS receivable, anD other inveStmentS
The Cooperative has investments carried at cost in the following:

   2012    2011 
Common and preferred stock  $ 421,824   206,497

Funds held in trust   17,355,806   13,284,470

Restricted cash   3,117,263   2,705,108

Investment in NRUCFC   4,652,910   4,637,347

Economic development loans   4,978,712   5,314,861

  $ 30,526,515   26,148,283

The above investments are included in the accompanying balance sheets as follows:

   2012    2011 
Investment in NRUCFC  $ 4,652,910   4,637,347

Notes receivable   4,978,712   5,314,861

Other investments   18,964,653   14,553,948

Other assets   1,930,240   1,642,127

  $ 30,526,515   26,148,283

The Cooperative has an investment of $4,652,910 and $4,637,347, at December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, with the NRUCFC. This invest-
ment is required in order to allow the Cooperative to borrow funds from NRUCFC. The investment earns interest of 7.5% on $2,000,000, which 
matures in 2044, 5.0% on $2,195,507, which matures between 2070 and 2080, and 3.0% on $121,789, which matures in 2025. The remaining 
balance of $335,614 does not earn interest.

Notes receivable consist of notes to member cooperatives and other businesses to assist in economic development of qualifying industrial 
sites, speculative buildings, rural housing, and certain joint venture projects. Interest rates on these notes receivable range from 0% to 5%. 
These notes are generally due under 10 year agreements with payments due monthly on a ratable basis. The Cooperative reviews the need 
for reserve for uncollectable accounts based on payment activity, historical collection rates, and collateral on the notes. The Cooperative has 
determined that no reserves were necessary at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Funds held in trust consist mainly of deferred patronage dividends related to the Cooperative’s membership in other cooperatives. At  
December 31, 2012 and 2011, $16,995,654 and $12,935,728 relates to the Cooperative’s deferred patronage dividends related to Basin Electric.

(6)DeferreD Patronage DiviDenDs anD other equities
In accordance with the Iowa Code, the Board of Directors is required to allocate a portion of the current year’s net margin to statutory surplus 
until the statutory surplus equals 30% of total membership capital. No additions can be made to statutory surplus whenever it exceeds 50% 
of total membership capital. The Board of Directors appropriated $2,262,516 and $700,000 of the 2012 and 2011, respectively, net margins to 
statutory surplus.

The equity-designated reserve for contingent losses in the statements of membership capital is an appropriation of equity by the Board of 
Directors. The Board of Directors appropriated $406,239 and $576,452 of the 2012 and 2011, respectively, net margin to reserve for contingent 
losses. There is no statutory restriction of this equity.

The Board of Directors is permitted by the Iowa Code to allocate the current year’s net margin to deferred patronage dividends upon meeting 
certain requirements and is required to make such allocations if the net margin for the year exceeds specified maximums. The Board of Direc-
tors has appropriated $8,060,000 and $7,108,000 of the 2012 and 2011 net margins, respectively, to deferred patronage dividends. Deferred 
patronage dividends are to be paid in the future as determined by the Board of Directors.

Under the conditions of the Cooperative’s mortgages, deferred patronage dividends cannot be retired without approval of the RUS and the 
NRUCFC unless the remaining equity meets certain tests. The Cooperative did not meet these tests at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

(7) DeferreD regulatory Debits anD CreDits
Regulatory assets are recorded for expenses that are deferred and will be recovered through rates charged to members in future periods. Such 
deferrals are approved by the Cooperative’s Board of Directors. The Cooperative does not earn a return on these regulatory assets. Regula-
tory credits are established for revenues that have been deferred as approved by the Cooperative’s Board of Directors. These amounts will be 
included in income in the year that they are applied to future costs or otherwise returned to members through a reduction in rates.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, deferred regulatory debits and credits consisted of the following:

   2012   2011 
Deferred regulatory debits:    
 DAEC regulatory asset $ 3,183,744  3,334,157
 Deferred refueling costs  2,925,038  1,375,319
 Decommissioning regulatory asset  31,378,337  29,979,106
  $ 37,487,119  34,688,582

Deferred regulatory credits:

 Deferred credit $ —  1,250,000

DAEC Regulatory Asset – In 2008, the Cooperative, with Board of Directors approval, established a regulatory asset in conjunction with the 
deferral of depreciation costs related to the DAEC until the extension of the plant license has been approved by the NRC. The plant license 
was approved in December 2010, accordingly, the Cooperative began amortizing the asset over the remaining life of the license through 2034.

Deferred Refueling Costs – The Cooperative defers extraordinary operation and maintenance expenses incurred during refueling outages of 
DAEC. DAEC nuclear refueling occurs approximately every two years and occurred in October 2012. These deferred costs are being amortized 
to expense based on the expected generation of the next fuel cycle, which corresponds with the period the Cooperative is recovering these 
costs in its rates. Such amortization was $1,735,908 and $1,833,760 for 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Decommissioning Regulatory Asset – In connection with the costs related to decommissioning of DAEC, the Cooperative has established a 
regulatory asset in conjunction with recording of the decommissioning liability. This regulatory asset is the difference between the decommis-
sioning liability and the realized value of the investments in the decommissioning fund.

DAEC Pension Regulatory Asset – In 2007, the Cooperative entered into an agreement with FPL to pay $2,330,000 of pension costs related to 
DAEC over a 10-year period. The Cooperative has established a deferred regulatory asset in conjunction with the pension cost. During 2011, 
the Cooperative paid the $1,631,000 to settle with FPL.

Deferred Credit – In October 2010, large rate increases were forecasted for the next three years; therefore, the Cooperative’s Board of Directors 
established a deferred credit of $3,750,000, which will be returned to members in the form of reduced revenue requirements. The revenue 
deferral was set aside in a cash account to cover expenditures in 2011 and 2012.

(8) short-term Debt
In 2008, the Cooperative entered into a $150,000,0000 syndicated unsecured revolving credit facility with NRUCFC, The Bank of Tokyo-
Mitsubishi UFJ, LTD, and Lloyds TSB Bank. The previous two existing credit facilities were rescinded at the same time. On October 1, 2009, 
the Cooperative reduced the unsecured credit facility from $150,000,000 to $75,000,000. On June 1, 2010, the Cooperative further reduced 
the unsecured credit facility to $50,000,000. The credit facility is available through February 2013. The Cooperative has drawn down on this 
credit facility $30,000,000 and $16,000,000 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Interest rates for the 2012 advances ranged from 
1.07% to 1.24%.

(9) long-term Debt
Long-term debt consists of mortgage notes payable to the United States of America acting through the RUS from the Federal Financing Bank 
(FFB), notes issued in conjunction with NRUCFC financing, revenue bonds issued due to agreements with Webster City, and notes borrowed 
through the USDA Intermediary Relending Program (IRP Notes) and Rural Economic Development Loans and Grants (REDLG loans) Program. 
The proceeds of these IRP Notes and REDLG loans are then lent to other eligible businesses within certain approved counties in the Coop-
erative’s service area. Substantially, all the assets, rent, income, revenue, and net margin of the Cooperative are pledged as collateral for the 
long-term debt of the Cooperative, except for IRP Notes and REDLG loans, which are not secured by assets of the Cooperative. Long-term debt 
comprises:

   2012    2011  
Mortgage notes due in quarterly installments:    

 FFB 1.630% – 10.657%, due 2013 – 2039 $ 171,419,716  174,746,270

 NRUCFC 5.125% – 6.125%, due 2013 – 2020  5,630,284  6,929,023

   177,050,000  181,675,293

Revenue bonds 2.25% – 6.00%, due 2014 – 2036  14,915,000  —

USDA Intermediary Relending Program – 0% – 1%, due 

 2013 – 2035  4,341,655  4,239,095

  $ 196,306,655  185,914,388

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years are as follows:

year:

 2013 $ 12,280,548

 2014  12,132,992

 2015  11,366,348

 2016  10,991,192

 2017  10,711,337

 Thereafter  138,824,238

  $ 196,306,655

Restrictive covenants require the Cooperative to set rates that would enable it to maintain a times interest earned ratio (TIER) of 1.05 and a 
debt service coverage (DSC) of 1.00 on average in at least two out of every three years. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Cooperative 
was in compliance with its covenants on long-term debt with respect to these financial ratios.

During 2012, the Cooperative borrowed $9,543,000 from the FFB to finance transmission and generation construction with rates ranging from 
1.630% to 1.848%.
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Since 1979, the Cooperative has had a long-term agreement with Webster City under which Webster City agreed to provide certain generation 
and transmission facilities to the Cooperative and the Cooperative has agreed to guarantee repayment of financing issued by Webster City 
to pay for these facilities and the continued improvement of these facilities. The Cooperative has recorded these assets in electric plant and 
has reflected the debt associated with this guarantee as long-term debt. Further, as part of the agreement, the Cooperative provided Webster 
City its wholesale power needs at rates consistent with rates charged to other Cooperative members. In September 2011, the Cooperative and 
Webster City entered into a new agreement to continue their relationship until December 2050.

In April 2012, Webster City commenced $14.9 million of financing in the form of revenue bonds associated with the Webster City agreement. 
The funds received in the financing were placed in a special fund to be used solely for the purposes of financing Webster City’s proportionate 
share of the capital expenditures of the contributed facilities. The Cooperative withdrew $7,609,284 from the fund in 2012 which were used for 
capital expenditures related to the contributed facilities.

USDA Rural Development requires all IRP and REDLG loans to be fully insured. The Cooperative maintains IRP and REDLG accounts with Bank 
Iowa. In January 2011, the Cooperative and Bank Iowa entered into a master repurchase agreement to guarantee the IRP and REDLG accounts in 
case of default. The accounts are guaranteed by securities pledged from Federal Farm Credit Bank and Federal National Mortgage Association 
in the amount of $1,000,000 each but not to exceed $1,500,000. These agreements will mature in five years or less.

(10) sPeCial funDs
Special funds consists of funds the RUS requires to be set aside in a special fund due to deferral of revenue (see note 7), money in a special 
fund to cover the future removal of the Wisdom Unit 1 ash landfill, and funds which the Cooperative has restrictive rights to due to issuance 
of revenue bonds (see note 9).

   2012   2011 
Ash landfill fund  123,010  97,329
Deferred credit fund  —  1,250,000
Revenue bond fund  7,009,246  —
 Total  7,132,256  1,347,329

(11) Commitments anD ContingenCies
In 2002, the Cooperative entered into a power purchase agreement to purchase 11.49% of the monthly generation from the Hancock County 
Wind Energy Center up to 11.22 megawatts. This agreement is effective through December 31, 2022 and rates are firm for the life of the 
contract.

In 2007, the Cooperative entered into a power purchase agreement to purchase the monthly generation from Crosswind Energy, LLC up to 21 
megawatts. This agreement is effective through June 15, 2022 and rates are firm for the life of the contract.

A long-term purchased power agreement with Basin Electric began on January 1, 2008 for 50 MW and expires December 31, 2050.

In 2008, the Cooperative entered into a power purchase agreement to purchase the monthly generation from Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative’s 
two wind farms both of which started generating in 2009. The agreement was amended in 2011 and the price is fixed for each of the years from 
2012 – 2028. The Cooperative is only obligated to pay for power that is actually received and the projects are not dispatchable.

(12) Joint Plant ownershiP
Under joint ownership agreements with other utilities, the Cooperative had undivided interests at December 31, 2012 in electric plant, including 
construction work in progress, as shown below:

      total      unit  
      electric   accumulated   accredited   cooperative’s
      plant   depreciation   capacity (mw)   share (%) 
Wisdom Unit 2   $  16,171,426  4,138,247   80   43.8% 

Neal #4      60,819,105  42,325,191   644     11.3  

Walter Scott #3     27,539,129  13,536,785   690   3.8  

DAEC      116,164,749  75,149,406   614   10.0  

Walter Scott #4     70,661,415  10,716,463   804   5.6  

Walter Scott #4 – transmission    4,976,169  799,952   —   5.3  

Lehigh Webster – transmission    2,910,344  1,176,457   —   27.0  

Neal #3 Grimes-Lehigh – transmission    654,234  121,856   —   3.8 

Each participant provided its own financing for its share of the unit. The Cooperative’s share of direct expenses of the jointly owned units is 
included in the operating and maintenance expenses on the statements of revenues and expenses.

During 1991, the Cooperative; one of its members, North Iowa Municipal Electric Cooperative Association (NIMECA); and the city of Grundy 
Center, a NIMECA member, entered into a long-term lease agreement for the use by Grundy Center of 2 megawatts of the Cooperative’s ca-
pacity in the Neal #4 generation facilities. The Cooperative will continue to act as the Neal #4 partner on behalf of Grundy Center. The above 
plant statistics have been reduced to reflect the agreement.

During 2006, the Cooperative; one of its members, NIMECA; and the city of Spencer, a NIMECA member, entered into a long-term generation 
use agreement of approximately 5 megawatts of the Cooperative’s capacity in the Wisdom Unit 2 generation facilities. The above plant statistics 
have been reduced to reflect the agreement.

In November 2011, the Cooperative purchased an additional 2.14 megawatts of the Walter Scott #4 plant, increasing its jointly owned share to 
approximately 43 megawatts, for approximately $4.9 million.

(13) asset retirement obligation
The Cooperative has AROs arising from regulatory requirements to perform certain asset retirement activities at the time of decommissioning 
DAEC and disposing of certain electric plant. The liability was initially measured at fair value and subsequently is adjusted for accretion expense 
and changes in the amount or timing of the estimated cash flows. The corresponding asset retirement costs are capitalized as part of the car-
rying amount of the related long-lived asset and depreciated over the asset’s remaining useful life.

The Cooperative recognizes and estimates an ARO for its 10% share of the estimated cost to decommission DAEC. During 2008, a NRC esti-
mate of the decommissioning costs was updated. This report estimated the Cooperative’s share of the costs to be approximately $76,159,700 
(in 2008 dollars). The following table presents the activity for the AROs for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

  2012   2011 
Balance at January 1 $ 59,222,000  56,402,000
Accretion expense  2,961,000  2,820,000
Balance at December 31 $ 62,183,000  59,222,000

The Cooperative also recognizes a liability for its share of the estimated cost to remove the ash landfills at Walter Scott #3 and Neal #4. A 
reconciliation of the changes in the asset retirement obligation is depicted below:

  2012   2011 
Balance at January 1 $ 952,868  868,052
Changes in estimates, including timing   (139,022 )  56,132
Accretion expense  —  —
Obligations incurred  16,774   28,684
Balance at December 31 $ 830,620   952,868

(14) nuClear insuranCe Program
Liability for accidents at nuclear power plants is governed by the Price-Anderson Act, which limits the liability of nuclear reactor owners to the 
amount of insurance available from both private sources and an industry retrospective payment plan. In accordance with this Act, DAEC main-
tains $375 million of private liability insurance, which is the maximum obtainable, and participates in a secondary financial protection system, 
which provides up to $12.2 billion of liability insurance coverage per incident at any nuclear reactor in the United States. The Cooperative’s 
assessment on its 10% ownership in DAEC is approximately $11.7 million per nuclear incident.

Pursuant to provisions in various nuclear insurance policies, the Cooperative could be assessed retroactive premiums in connection with future 
accidents at a nuclear facility owned by a utility participating in the particular insurance plan. In addition, the Cooperative could be assessed 
annually approximately $3.2 million related to coverage for excess property damage if the insurer’s losses relating to an accident exceed its 
reserves. While assessment also may be made for losses in certain prior years, the Cooperative is not aware of any losses in such years that it 
believes are likely to result in an assessment.

In the unlikely event of a catastrophic loss at DAEC, the amount of insurance available may not be adequate to cover property damage, decon-
tamination, and premature decommissioning. Uninsured losses, to the extent not recovered through rates, would be borne by the Cooperative 
and could have a material adverse effect on the Cooperative’s financial position and results of operations.

(15) benefit Plans
The National Rural Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) Retirement & Security Plan (RS Plan) is a defined benefit pension plan qualified 
under Section 401 and tax exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. It is a multiemployer plan under the accounting stan-
dards. The plan sponsor’s Employer Identification Number is 53-0116145 and the Plan Number is 333.

A unique characteristic of a multiemployer plan compared to a single employer plan is that all plan assets are available to pay benefits of any 
plan participant. Separate asset accounts are not maintained for participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one employer 
may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers.

Corn Belt’s contributions to the RS Plan in 2012 and 2011 represented less than 5% of the total contributions made to the plan by all participat-
ing employers. Corn Belt made contributions to the plan of $1,608,006 in 2012, and $1,538,489 in 2011. There have been no significant changes 
that affect the comparability of 2012 and 2011 contributions.

In the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not determined, under the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. 
In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, 
the Retirement Security Plan was between 65% and 80% funded at January 1, 2012 and January 1, 2011 based on the PPA funding target and 
PPA actuarial value of assets on those dates.

Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and surcharges are not applicable. Future contribu-
tion requirements are determined each year as part of the actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.

The Cooperative also provides a 401(k) plan, available to all employees, with the Cooperative matching 40% of the employees’ contributions 
up to 5% of the employees’ wages. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Cooperative contributed $124,985 and $118,360, respectively, to the 
401(k) plan.
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(16) nimeCa CombineD transmission system
In 1989, the Cooperative and one of its members, NIMECA, entered into a joint transmission agreement that allows several members of 
NIMECA an individual undivided ownership interest in and access to the Cooperative’s transmission system. The Cooperative will continue to 
operate and maintain the system. NIMECA members will reimburse the Cooperative for the proportionate share of operating expenses of the 
system and will contribute proportionately for all future capital additions of the system. The reimbursement of the 2012 and 2011 operating 
expenses was $771,769 and $783,826, respectively, and was recorded as other operating revenues.

(17) environmental matters
The Clean Air Act (the Act), as amended, made significant reductions in the amounts of sulfur dioxide (SO2) and nitrogen oxide (NOx) emis-
sions allowed on an annual basis nationwide. The Cooperative’s coal-fired generating stations are in compliance with the standards established 
by Phase I and Phase II of the Act.

On December 23, 2008, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit reversed its vacatur of the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency’s (EPA) Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR). The Court had vacated CAIR in July 2008, citing significant flaws in the EPA’s regulations. CAIR 
regulates interstate emission of oxides NOx and SO2 contributing to nonattainment areas for fine particulate and ozone. CAIR permanently 
caps emissions of SO2 and NOx in the eastern states.

In July 2011, the EPA finalized the Cross State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPR), which further addresses the interstate transport of air pollution. This 
rule is to replace CAIR starting January 1, 2012 with higher reductions of SO2 and NOx in the eastern states. On December 30, 2011, the District 
of Columbia Circuit Court of Appeals put on hold the EPA CSAPR as it hears arguments from petitioners challenging the rule’s implementation. 
The ruling also ordered EPA to continue enforcing CAIR.

In December 2009, the final EPA Mandatory Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Reporting rule became effective. The final rule requires that sources 
above certain threshold levels to monitor and report GHG emissions.

On December 16, 2011, EPA issued the final Utility Mercury and Air Toxics Rule (Utility MATS Rule). The Utility MATS Rule regulates mercury 
and other hazardous air pollutants based upon maximum achievable control technology for new and existing coal-fired electric generating 
units nationwide.

In June 2010, EPA proposed a Coal Ash Rule to further regulate coal ash landfills and ash ponds. The proposed rule has two coal ash-designated 
alternatives. A hazardous regulation has the potential to significantly reduce coal ash in beneficial use applications. The proposed regulations 
have not yet been finalized.

The Cooperative believes that the combination of the costs for the required capital investments, increased operational expenses, and purchase 
of emission allowances resulting from these new regulations will be significant.

(18) subsequent events
On February 1, 2013, the Cooperative approved a new mortgage note payable to the United States of America acting through the RUS and the 
FFB for $55,788,000 for generation projects.

On February 4, 2013, the Cooperative closed on two separate three-year credit agreements with both CFC and CoBank, each providing 
$50,000,000 of available financing.

The Cooperative has evaluated subsequent events from the balance sheet date through February 25, 2013, the date at which the financial 
statements were available to be issued and noted no additional items to disclose.
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